
Summons and 
Agenda 

 
 

Town Hall 
 Royal Tunbridge Wells 

 
Tuesday, 6 December 2022 

 
 

 
To the Members of the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council  
 
I request your attendance at an Extraordinary meeting of the Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council to be held at the Council Chamber, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 1RS, on 
Wednesday, 14 December 2022, at 6.45 pm, or at the rising of the preceding extraordinary 
meeting (whichever is the latest), when the following business is proposed to be transacted. 
 

1   Apologies for absence 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

(Page 3) 

2   Declarations of Interest 
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on 
the agenda. For any advice on declarations of interest; please 
contact the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 

(Page 4) 

3   Whole Council Elections 
To consider and if thought fit, to approve the recommendations 
set out in the associated report. 

(Pages 5 - 51) 

4   Common Seal of the Council 
To authorise the Common Seal of the Council to be affixed to 
any contract, minute, notice or other document arising out of 
the minutes, or pursuant to any delegation, authority or power 
conferred by the Council. 

(Page 52) 

 
 

William Benson 
Chief Executive 

 
Democratic Services Team Town Hall  

ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
Tel:      (01892) 554413 Kent   TN1 1RS 
Email:  Committee@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk  

 

Watch Live 
 

Watch this meeting online, live via the Council’s website. 
Archived recordings of previous meetings are also available. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/webcasts  

 

 

Go Paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on 
your mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp  

 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 
 
 

Attending meetings 
 
Meetings are held in the town hall and are webcast live online. 
 
Members of the public may attend to watch/listen in person or online live via our website. A 
recording of the meeting will also be available shortly after the end of the meeting. 
 
All meetings and agenda are open to the public except where confidential information is 
being discussed. The agenda of the meeting will identify whether any meeting or part of the 
meeting is not open to the public and explain why. 
 
Seating for the public will be allocated on a first-come-first-serve basis and cannot be 
guaranteed. 
 

Speaking at Meetings 
 
Members of the public are encouraged to participate and those wishing to comment on an 
agenda item will need to register with Democratic Services in advance. 
 
Registration opens when the agenda is published and closes at 4pm on the last working day 
before the meeting. 
 
There may be up to 4 speakers per agenda item and speakers have up to 3 minutes each. 
 
Places are allocated on a first-come-first-served basis except that if there are several 
speakers from the same group they may be asked to nominate someone to represent their 
collective view. 
 
Once registered, speakers will need to attend the meeting in person. Comments should be in 
the form of a statement giving your opinion on the matter. Members of the committee may 
not answer questions or get into a debate with you. 
 
Registrations may be sent by email to committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk at any time during 
the registration period. 
 
Full details are available on our website www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings 
or from Democratic Services at committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk or call 01892 554413. 
 

If you require this information in another format 
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email 

committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk  

 

Page 2

mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Apologies for Absence  

For Full Council on 14 December 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Declarations of Interest 

 

Declarations of Interest 

For Full Council on 14 December 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda in accordance 

with the Members’ Code of Conduct. For any advice on declarations of interest, please 

contact the Monitoring Office before the meeting. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

Page  

1 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

Whole Council Elections  

For Full Council on Wednesday 14 December 2022

 

Summary 

Lead Member: Cllr Rob Wormington – Chairman of General Purposes Committee 

Lead Director: Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Head of Service: Jane Clarke – Head of Policy and Governance 

Report Author: Jane Clarke – Head of Policy and Governance 

Classification: Public document (non-exempt) 

Wards Affected: All 

Approval Timetable Date 

General Purposes Committee 5 December 2022 

Special Full Council 14 December 2022 

Recommendations 

The recommendation is: 

1. “That Tunbridge Wells Borough Council hereby adopts a scheme of whole 

council elections, meaning an electoral cycle of one election every four years 

with all councillors being elected, with the first such election being held in 2024.” 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

2 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1 The legislation governing the move to whole council (all out) elections is 

contained within the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 

2007 and the Localism Act 2011. The Acts give councils the power to decide 

whether to move to whole council elections, or back to elections by halves or 

elections by thirds (if they have elected this way at some point since 1 April 

1974). The Council cannot move to a ‘halves’ electoral cycle as it has not elected 

this way in the past. 

 

1.2 The legislation sets out the steps a Council must take when considering 

changing its electoral system. Should the Council pass a resolution to move to 

whole council elections, it cannot pass another resolution (i.e. to move back to a 

system of thirds) before the end of five years beginning with the day on which the 

resolution is passed. 

 

1.3 The Council cannot pass a resolution on whole council elections unless: 

 

• It has taken reasonable steps to consult with such persons as it thinks 

appropriate on the proposed change. 

• It holds a meeting which is specially convened for the purpose of deciding 

the resolution. 

• The resolution is supported by a majority of at least two thirds of the 

members voting on it. 

• The resolution must specify the year for the first ordinary elections of the 

council at which all councillors are to be elected. 

• The whole council election year is not to be a county-council election year. 

2. Consultation 

2.1 The Council ran a public consultation between 13 October to 23 November, the 

results of which are summarised below.  

 

2.2 The consultation was available to any resident in the Borough using the Council’s 

online consultation software ‘Talking Point’ and was widely promoted through the 

Council’s weekly digital newsletter and on social media.  

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

3 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

2.3 Further to this, to ensure that those who did not commonly use digital channels 

to stay in contact with the Council, letters and emails were sent to just under 

10,000 residents in the Borough, directly inviting them to take part in the 

consultation using a unique code. The addresses were chosen at random, but a 

percentage of addresses per ward were chosen (based on population size of the 

ward), with the aim to give (as far as possible) a fair representation across the 

wards of the Borough. 

 

2.4 Direct invitations to respond online were also sent to Members of Parliament for 

the Borough, County Councillors, Town and Parish Chairs, the Chair of the Royal 

Tunbridge Wells Town Forum, and the Returning Officer for Maidstone Borough 

Council (who currently returns the Member of Parliament for Maidstone and the 

Weald Constituency, and so may be affected if all out Boroughs and a UKPGE or 

Parliamentary By-Election for that Constituency are combined). 

 

2.5 There were 1,067 responses to the consultation. A demographic and ward 

breakdown is available at appendix A. Of those who responded, 686 chose the 

‘all out’ electoral system (64%), and 381 chose the ‘by thirds’ electoral system 

(36%).  

 

2.6 There were two letters of representation to the Committee were submitted from 

Borough Councillors: Cllr David Knight; and Cllr Tom Dawlings. Both are in 

favour of moving to all out elections and are attached at appendices C-D of the 

report.  

 

2.7 There were also ten letters of representation to the Committee received from 

Parish and Town Councils, which are attached at appendices E-O. The Parish 

and Town Councils present a variety of arguments to Committee members, but 

all are in favour of moving to all out elections, principally in order to achieve 

greater flexibility in warding arrangements so that natural communities can be 

preserved. This is as a direct consequence of the current Electoral Review, 

which requires the Council to move to a three-member ward pattern if it retains 

elections ‘by thirds’. The current draft proposals for the Electoral Review can be 

viewed here (goes to external website): LGBCE Tunbridge Wells Electoral 

Review Draft Proposals.  

 

2.8 There was one response received from the Chair of the Tunbridge Wells Branch 

of the Labour Party which is attached at appendix P. 

3. Costs and Savings 

3.1 It is worth repeating that, as a Best Value authority, Members are required to 

consider the costs of services, and from time to time review those costs to 

ensure that the tax-payer is receiving best value for money. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/South%20East/Kent/Tunbridge%20Wells/Draft/Tunbridge%20Wells%20Draft%20Recommendations%20Report.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/South%20East/Kent/Tunbridge%20Wells/Draft/Tunbridge%20Wells%20Draft%20Recommendations%20Report.pdf


 

Page  

4 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

3.2 Whole Council elections (all out) cost less to run than electing by thirds, in 

particular where those elections can be combined with other significant elections 

such as the Police and Crime Commissioner elections as the costs for fixed 

entities such as polling stations, staff on polling stations, training etc., are shared. 

 

3.3 An example of the savings that could be achieved over a four-year period is set 

out at Appendix B. This shows that over the four-year cycle from 2024 to 2027 

the authority would save over £200,000 by not holding Borough elections in 2026 

or 2027. Please note that this financial information was prepared in 2021, and 

since then costs have risen so it is likely that the savings achieved would be 

greater. 

4. Next Steps 

4.1 As outlined in section one, it must be a specially convened meeting of Full 

Council that passes a resolution to move to Whole Council elections. 

 

4.2 In running a public consultation, and inviting specific organisations to consult, the 

Council has discharged its duty to ‘consult with such persons as it thinks 

appropriate on the proposed change’. 

 

4.3  Members of the General Purposes Committee received the report as a 

procedural item on 5 December and resolved to refer the matter to Full Council 

for discussion. Should Full Council resolve to move to Whole Council elections, 

the first such election would be held in May 2024. If the Council decides to 

remain with a by-thirds electoral system, the existing electoral cycle will remain in 

place with Borough elections being held in 2023, 2024, 2026, 2027 and 2028, 

and County Council elections being held in 2025 and 2029. It should be noted 

that Borough elections cannot be held in the same year as County elections 

except by order of Parliament. 

5. Appendices and Background Documents 

Appendices: 

• Appendix A: Consultation Breakdown  

• Appendix B: Achievable Savings (from 2021 review) 

• Appendix C: Letter from Cllr David Knight 

• Appendix D: Letter from Cllr Tom Dawlings 

• Appendix E: Representation from Brenchley and Matfield Parish Council  

• Appendix F: Representation from Goudhurst Parish Council 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

5 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

• Appendix G: Representation from Capel Parish Council 

• Appendix H: Representation from Lamberhurst Parish Council 

• Appendix I: Representation from Cranbrook and Sissinghurst Parish Council 

• Appendix J: Representation from Frittenden Parish Council 

• Appendix K: Representation from Hawkhurst Parish Council 

• Appendix L: Representation from Paddock Wood Town Council 

• Appendix M: Representation from Horsmonden Parish Council 

• Appendix N: Representation from Bidborough Parish Council 

• Appendix O: Representation from Southborough Town Council  

• Appendix P: Representation from Chair of the Tunbridge Wells Branch Labour 

Party 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

6 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

6. Cross Cutting Issues 

A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act) 

The legislation governing the move to whole-council (all out) elections is the Local 

Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Localism Act 2011. The Acts 

give councils the power to decide whether to move to whole-council elections, or back to 

elections by halves or elections by thirds (if they have elected this way at some point since 1 

April 1974). The Council cannot move to a ‘halves’ electoral cycle as it has not elected this 

way in the past. 

The decision must be made by a special meeting of the Full Council with a two-thirds majority 

in favour of the recommendation to move to all out elections. 

Claudette Valmond, Head of Legal Partnership, 14 November 2022 

B. Finance and Other Resources 

The move to all-out elections would save the avoid costs of two elections within a four-year 

cycle. An example of the savings that could be made in 2026 and 2027 is detailed in the 

report at section 3. 

The Borough Council is a Best Value authority defined in the Local Government Act 1999. 

Best Value authorities are under a general Duty of Best Value to “make arrangements to 

secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 

regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

The consideration of moving to whole council elections by the General Purposes Committee, 

and consulting with the public and stakeholders on this issue fulfils this duty.  

Jane Fineman, Head of Finance, Parking and Procurement, 14 November 2022 

C. Staffing 

Elections, referendums, Neighbourhood Planning referendums, Business Improvement 

District Polls and Parish Polls are organised, managed and run by the Electoral Services 

team within the Council. This team also administers the Register of Electoral and the annual 

canvass of electors. Reducing the number of Borough elections within the cycle would not 

significantly reduce the amount of work required to be done by the Electoral Services team, 

and so this report would not affect the internal resources of the Council in a substantial way. 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

7 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

Nicky Carter, Head of HR, Communities and Customer Services, 14 November 2022 

D. Risk Management 

There are no risk management issues as part of this report. 

 

Jane Clarke, Head of Policy and Governance, 14 November 2022 

E. Environment and Sustainability 

There are no environment or sustainability issues to consider as part of this report. 

Section 40, National Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 

40(1) Every public authority must, in exercising its functions have regard so 

far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the 

purpose of conserving biodiversity. 

Section 85, Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 

85(1) In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to 

affect, land in an area of outstanding natural beauty, a relevant authority 

shall have regard to the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural 

beauty of the area of outstanding natural beauty. 

 

Jane Clarke, Head of Policy and Governance, 14 November 2022 

F. Community Safety 

There are no community safety issues to consider as part of this report. 

Section 17, Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

17(1) Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the 

duty of each authority to which this section applies to exercise its various 

functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 

functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime 

and disorder in its area. 

 

Jane Clarke, Head of Policy and Governance, 14 November 2022 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

8 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

G. Equalities 

The Electoral Commission report from 2002 references research which suggests that both 

younger age groups and those with an ethnicity other than white were less likely to know 

when local elections were taking place, and that moving to a nationwide pattern of all out 

elections would improve enfranchisement for these groups compared with those who do not 

share their characteristics. 

The Council is under a duty to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic (in this case age and ethnicity) and persons who do not 

share it. Moving to all out elections may provide an opportunity for the Council to positively 

impact on the opportunities of these groups to participate and vote in elections. 

Section 149, Equality Act 2010 

149(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 

regard to the need to –  

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 

that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 

Jane Clarke, Head of Policy and Governance, 14 November 2022 

H. Data Protection 

A public consultation has been run by the Council, which includes personal data in the form 

or comments and opinions from data subjects. This information has been collected through 

the Council’s consultation portal, and will be deleted in line with the Council’s retention 

scheme.  

Article 5, General Data Protection Regulation 2016 

1. Personal data shall be: 

(a) processed lawfully, fairly and in a transparent manner in relation to the 

data subject; 

(b) collected for specific, explicit and legitimate purposes and not further 

processed in a manner that is incompatible with those purposes; 

(c) adequate, relevant and limited to what is necessary in relation to the 

purposes for which they are processed; 

(d) accurate and, where necessary, kept up to date; 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

9 of 9 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Whole Council Elections 

 

(e) kept in a form which permits identification of data subjects for no longer 

than is necessary for the purposes for which the personal data are 

processed; 

(f) processed in a manner that ensures appropriate security of the personal 

data, including protection against unauthorised or unlawful processing and 

against accidental loss, destruction or damage, using appropriate technical 

or organisational measures. 

 

Jane Clarke, Data Protection Officer, 14 November 2022 

I. Health and Safety 

There are no health and safety considerations as part of this report. 

Jane Clarke, Head of Policy and Governance, 14 November 2022 

J. Health and Wellbeing 

There are no health and wellbeing considerations as part of this report. 

1. Areas of deprivation: Will the proposal have an impact (positive of 

negative) on those living in areas of deprivation within the borough (40% 

most deprived in the country). These are Sherwood, Southborough and High 

Brooms, Broadwater and Rusthall. 

2. Healthier lifestyle opportunities: Will residents be more or less able to 

make healthier lifestyle choices such as physical activity (e.g. active travel, 

access to green spaces or access to leisure facilities), healthy eating (e.g. 

proximity or access to take away shops, allotments, food stores) and being 

smokefree 

3. Social and Community networks: Will the proposal make it easier for 

people to interact with one another e.g. encouraging community engagement 

4. Living and Working Conditions: does to proposal improve work or home 

environments, increase job, education or training opportunities, improve 

access to health services or housing 

5. General Socioeconomic, cultural and environmental conditions: Are there 

any other factors that may impact the above 

 

Jane Clarke, Head of Policy and Governance, 14 November 2022 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

1 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 
Revision: 5 

 

Electoral System 

Consultation - Results 
 

Contents 
Background ......................................................................................................................... 1 

What is an electoral system? ........................................................................................... 2 

Voting by thirds ................................................................................................................ 2 

Voting every four years, or "all out" elections ................................................................... 2 

Communications Plan .......................................................................................................... 3 

Draft Social Media Posts .................................................................................................. 4 

Methodology ........................................................................................................................ 5 

Participant Demographics .................................................................................................... 6 

Age ................................................................................................................................... 6 

Sex ................................................................................................................................... 7 

Ethnicity ........................................................................................................................... 8 

Disability ........................................................................................................................... 8 

Results ................................................................................................................................. 8 

Results by Ward ............................................................................................................... 9 

Results by Participant Type ........................................................................................... 11 

 

Background 

Following the decision of Full Council on Wednesday 5 October, a consultation on our 

electoral system ran for six weeks from 13th October to 23rd November 2022. In addition to a 

representative 10,000 households invited by post or email to respond, we encouraged 

residents across the borough to take part through general messaging on social media 

channels and our weekly e-mail newsletter to 13,000 subscribers. 

Page 14

Appendix A



 

Page  

2 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

What is an electoral system? 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council currently has 48 councillors who are each elected for a 

four-year term. The borough area is divided into 20 roughly equal 'wards'. The councillors are 

elected to, and represent, their local ward. 

The Council is considering moving to 'all out' elections (also known as ‘whole council’ 

elections) or to remain with elections 'by thirds'. 

The Council currently uses a 'by thirds' electoral system. This means that over four years, 

elections are held in years one, two and three for a third of the Council each year (16 

councillors). In the fourth year County Council elections are held. 

Moving to 'All out elections' means that over the four-year term, elections would only be held 

in year one for all councillors at the same time. 

Voting by thirds 

If your council votes by thirds, a third of councillors are elected every year over a four-year 

period. There are no elections in the fourth year. This is the system currently in place for the 

borough of Tunbridge Wells.  

The benefits of this system have been stated as providing greater stability for the Council in 

terms of its membership. Electing by thirds reduces the risk of wholesale change within the 

Council and allows for succession planning because there is always a mixture of new and 

experienced councillors on the Council. 

Additionally, electing by thirds provides the electorate a greater opportunity to be involved in 

decision making at the Council, and arguments have been put forward that this makes 

councillors more democratically accountable. 

Lastly, it has been stated that some smaller political parties would find it difficult to field 

enough candidates to contest all seats at an all-out election. However, electing by thirds does 

not, in and of itself, create a greater availability of candidates for any party, but those 

candidates who are willing to stand have more frequent opportunities to do so. 

Electing by thirds is the current electoral system of the Council, and so there would be no 

saving or additional costs associated with retaining this system of electing. 

Voting every four years, or "all out" elections 

Some councils, including all of the London boroughs, have local elections every four years, 

and elect all councillors at the same time. This is the system which Tunbridge Wells Borough 

Council may adopt. 

Research from the Electoral Commission in 2003 suggests that 'all out' elections are fairer 

and more equitable to the electorate, and that the electoral system is clearer and easier to 

understand. 

Page 15

Appendix A



 

Page  

3 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

Currently, electors in areas of the borough where there are three councillors to elect in their 

ward (the area they represent), get to vote three times over the course of four years. Electors 

in areas where there is only one councillor representing the area only get to vote once. This 

means that some electors in the borough have more influence on the political make-up of the 

Council than others. 

All out elections would make an approximate saving of over £200,000 over four years by 

reducing the number of elections held from three to one. 

Communications Plan 

Stakeholder/ 
Stakeholder 
Group 

Objectives 
(Desired 
Actions) 

Message 
Content 

Delivery 
Methods/Venue 

By When 
(Frequency) 

Research and 
Insight Officer 

Create survey What do you 
think of these 
options? 

Talking Point 10th October 

Digital Services Invite 
participants 
by post and 
email 

Please take 
part in our 
consultation. 

Post. Email 14th October 

Communications Promote 
survey via 
social media 

Tell us what 
you think of 
our electoral 
system 

Facebook, 
Twitter, 
Nextdoor 

Every 4-5 
days, 
increasing to 
daily in the 
last week of 
the 
consultation 
period 

Research and 
Insight Officer 

Promote 
survey with 
community 
groups 

Please can 
you ask your 
members to 
share their 
views 

Email Targeting 
groups whose 
demographics 
are missing 
each week of 
the 
consultation 
period. 

Communications Promote the 
consultation 
via the e-
newsletter 

Take part in 
the 
consultation 

Email Every other 
week during 
the 
consultation 
period. 

Communications Promote the 
consultations 
with Parish 
Councils 

Please take 
this survey 

Email At the start of 
the 
consultation 
period. 

 

Page 16

Appendix A



 

Page  

4 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

Draft Social Media Posts  

Selected posts were scheduled by the Senior Media and Communications Officer: 

How do you want to vote? It’s time to vote on voting! Vote-ception. Find out more about our 

electoral system consultation on Talking Point: 

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system  

We’re considering changing our electoral system, and we need you to tell us what you think! 

Take part in our consultation page here: 

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system  

Autumn is a season of change; we’re thinking about changing our electoral system. To tell us 

what you think, take part in our consultation: 

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system  

For democracy to work, voting is kind of a big deal, but how often do you want to vote? Have 

your say here: https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-

our-electoral-system  

It’s the season for apple bobbing, crisp walks and taking part in consultations. Tell us what 

you think about potential changes to our electoral system here: 

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system  

For rainy days 

It’s tipping it down! Why not cosy up with a cuppa and a consultation? We’re asking residents 

what you think about our Electoral System. Have your say here: 

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system 

For 16 October 

Why not take a break from listening to the new Taylor Swift album to give us your opinion on 

potential changes to our Electoral System? 

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system 

For Saturday evenings 

Have you voted online for your favourite #Strictly couple? While you’re in the mood for online 

forms, why not tell us what you think of our electoral system? 

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system 

For late November 

Page 17

Appendix A

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system


 

Page  

5 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

Holidays are coming! And so is the deadline for our electoral system consultation, share your 

thoughts now: https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-

our-electoral-system 

Methodology 

This survey was delivered online (via Talking Point) and by post. 10,000 residents were 

contacted by post or email and provided with a unique code which they used to complete the 

consultation. Unique codes were linked to postcodes to assess the number of responses 

received from each ward. This approach helps mitigate the risk that wards may be over- or 

under-represented in the results and ensures the views of residents in all wards are equally 

heard. In our results, these are the ‘invited participants’. 

Residents not given an invitation letter were able to complete the consultation by registering 

via the Talking Point consultation portal. In our results, these are the ‘registered participants’.  

Survey questions for invited participants 

What electoral system should the council have? 

• By thirds (where a third of Councillors are elected three years out of four) 

• All out (where Councillors are elected once every four years) 

 

Please enter the unique code from your invitation letter / email: 

We have some optional questions for you to tell us a bit more about yourself, is this okay? 

• Yes 

• No 

Should the user respond “Yes” to the final question, they will be asked to complete the same 

demographic questions which they would be asked on registration.  

Survey questions for registered participants 

What electoral system should the council have? 

• By thirds (where a third of Councillors are elected three years out of four) 

• All out (where Councillors are elected once every four years) 

Where did you hear about this consultation?* 

• Weekly email newsletter 

• Social Media 

• Word of Mouth 

• Invitation Letter 

Page 18

Appendix A

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system
https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-system


 

Page  

6 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

• Other (please specify) 

Are you completing this survey on behalf of an organisation or town/parish council? 

• Yes 

• No 

Please enter the name of your organisation: 

Participant Demographics 

We received a total of 1067 responses. The borough has a population of 115,311 according 

to the Office for National Statistics (ONS). The responses we received represent 0.93% of 

residents. For this sample size, there is a confidence level of 95% that the real value is within 

±3% of the measured/surveyed value. 

We invited 10,000 residents by post and email. We received 749 responses from users with 

invitation codes. 7.4% of invited participants responded.  

We also received 318 responses from participants who were not invited by post or email. 

33% of these participants heard about the consultation via our email newsletter.  

 

Demographic information optionally provided by participants has been matched with ONS 

mid-year population estimates to establish how representative the respondents were of the 

Borough’s population, by age, sex and ethnicity. 

Age 

The sample response is not representative of the Borough’s population by age range. The 

chart below illustrates that age groups of 46 and older were over-represented within the 

responses, whilst those 45 and younger were under-represented. 

Page 19

Appendix A



 

Page  

7 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

 

Figure 1 Age range of respondents vs Borough population 

Sex 

The sex of respondents is not representative of the Borough population. Males are over-

represented in the sample size, whereas females are under-represented.  

 

Figure 2 Sex of respondents vs Borough population 

Page 20

Appendix A



 

Page  

8 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

Ethnicity 

The ethnic split of participants was broadly representative of the split in the borough 

according to ONS data, with minority ethnic groups slightly over-represented. 

  

Figure 3 Ethnicity of Respondents vs Borough Population 

Disability 

6.6% of respondents defined themselves as having a ‘physical or mental impairment which 

has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on that person’s ability to carry out normal 

day-to-day activities’. 

Although not directly comparable, in the 2011 Census 6.06% of Tunbridge Wells residents 

declared themselves to have a disability that limited their day-to-day activities ‘a lot’. 

Results 

686 response were in favour of all out elections, 381 responses were in favour of election by 

thirds. 

 

Page 21

Appendix A



 

Page  

9 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

 

Figure 4 Overall results 

Results by Ward 

The 10,000 invited respondents were selected evenly by ward, according to the proportion of 

households in each ward. 

In the table and chart below, we see fair representation from each ward in the borough within 

the responses. Some wards are slightly over-represented (Goudhurst & Lamberhurst, 

Pantiles & St Marks) and some under-represented (Paddock Wood East, Sherwood) but 

overall, we can have confidence that views from all wards in the Borough have been 

received.  

Page 22

Appendix A



 

Page  

10 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

 

Figure 5 Table of households by ward vs responses 

 

 

Figure 6 Bar chart of households by ward vs responses 

  

Ward Households in Ward Proportion of Borough Responses Proportion of Responses

Benenden & Cranbrook 3289 6% 52 6%

Brenchley & Horsmonden 2293 4% 38 4%

Broadwater 2063 4% 25 3%

Capel 973 2% 16 2%

Culverden 4543 9% 88 10%

Frittenden & Sissinghurst 1015 2% 30 3%

Goudhurst & Lamberhurst 2053 4% 67 7%

Hawkhurst & Sandhurst 3004 6% 49 5%

Paddock Wood East 1979 4% 21 2%

Paddock Wood West 1620 3% 22 2%

Pantiles & St Marks 3371 6% 86 9%

Park 3883 7% 75 8%

Pembury 2528 5% 46 5%

Rusthall 2233 4% 38 4%

Sherwood 3658 7% 44 5%

Southborough & High Brooms 3247 6% 45 5%

Southborough North 2003 4% 39 4%

Speldhurst & Bidborough 2478 5% 49 5%

St James 2972 6% 43 5%

St Johns 2970 6% 53 6%

Total 52175 926

Page 23

Appendix A



 

Page  

11 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

The table below details the proportion of responses within each ward in favour of election By 

Thirds or All Out. 

All wards, except Broadwater and Park, returned in favour of All Out elections.  

This table was added on 6th December 2023, after General Purposes Committee. 

  By Thirds   All Out   

Wards (or no ward) Responses Percent Responses Percent 

No Ward 56 39.7% 85 60.3% 

Benenden & Cranbrook 19 36.5% 33 63.5% 

Brenchley & Horsmonden 15 39.5% 23 60.5% 

Broadwater 14 56.0% 11 44.0% 

Capel 5 31.3% 11 68.8% 

Culverden 32 36.4% 56 63.6% 

Frittenden & Sissinghurst 7 23.3% 23 76.7% 

Goudhurst & Lamberhurst 17 25.4% 50 74.6% 

Hawkhurst & Sandhurst 12 24.5% 37 75.5% 

Paddock Wood East 7 33.3% 14 66.7% 

Paddock Wood West 10 45.5% 12 54.5% 

Pantiles & St Marks 29 33.7% 57 66.3% 

Park 39 52.0% 36 48.0% 

Pembury 17 37.0% 29 63.0% 

Rusthall 12 31.6% 26 68.4% 

Sherwood 13 29.5% 31 70.5% 

Southborough & High Brooms 12 26.7% 33 73.3% 

Southborough North 11 28.2% 28 71.8% 

Speldhurst & Bidborough 16 32.7% 33 67.3% 

St James 14 32.6% 29 67.4% 

St Johns 24 45.3% 29 54.7% 

Grand Total 381 35.7% 686 64.3% 
Figure 7 Table of results by ward 

 

Results by Participant Type 

Overall, there was little difference in the results depending on whether the participant was 

invited as part of the 10,000 random sample or participated in response to general 

messaging about the consultation. For both sets of participants, almost 2/3rds of respondents 

were in favour of all-out elections. 

Page 24

Appendix A



 

Page  

12 of 12 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Electoral System Results 

Date of publication – 24 November 2022 2022 
Revision: 5 

Revision: 5 

 

 

Figure 8 Results by registerd vs invited participants 

 

 

 

Page 25

Appendix A



Cycle when electing by thirds Savings for 2026

2024 2025 2026 2027 Emoluments 55,877.03           

Borough County Borough Borough Electric (Room Hire) 18.00                  

Parliamentary Room Hire (Inc Hendley & Ass Hall) 15,024.86           

PCC Printing and Stationery 14,749.28           

Brenchley Benenden Bidborough Postage (Poll Cards, Postal Votes) 37,780.00           

Capel Cranbrook & Sissinghurst Hospitality for Count 250.00                

Hawkhurst Frittenden Parish Recharge for Benenden 6,594.72-             

Horsmonden Goudhurst

Lamberhurst Paddock Wood 117,104.45         

Sandhurst Pembury

Rusthall

Southborough Savings for 2027

Speldhurst Emoluments 54,062.91           

Electric (Room Hire) 18.00                  

Cycle when electing whole council Room Hire (Inc Hendley & Ass Hall) 17,165.00           

2024 2025 2026 2027 Printing and Stationery 14,749.28           

Borough County Postage (Poll Cards, Postal Votes) 37,780.00           

Parliamentary Hospitality for Count 250.00                

PCC Parish Recharge for Bidborough 1,333.65-             

Brenchley Benenden Bidborough Parish Recharge for Cranbrook & Sissinghurst 4,116.72-             

Capel Cranbrook & Sissinghurst Parish Recharge for Frittenden 1,368.65-             

Hawkhurst Frittenden Parish Recharge for Goudhurst 4,029.64-             

Horsmonden Goudhurst Parish Recharge for Paddock Wood 5,425.45-             

Lamberhurst Paddock Wood Parish Recharge for Pembury 2,844.38-             

Sandhurst Pembury Parish Recharge for Rusthall 2,838.82-             

Rusthall Parish Recharge for Southborough 6,973.04-             

Southborough Parish Recharge for Speldhurst 2,962.57-             

Speldhurst

92,132.27           

P
age 26

A
ppendix B



I am wri(ng in as a Borough Councillor for Goudhurst and Kilndown and also as a Kilndown resident and 
Kilndown Councillor at Goudhurst Parish Council to completely reject the dra9 proposals as these will result 
in Goudhurst and Kilndown being split apart and Kilndown residents being completely disenfranchised.  

The exis(ng dra9 proposals are contrary to the Government Localism Act 2011, which aims to devolve power 
away from Whitehall and back into the hands of local councils, communi(es and individuals to act on local 
priori(es, see - hHps://www.gov.uk/government/publica(ons/localism-act-2011-overview 

COMMUNITY LINKS  

It is also contrary to The Local Government Boundary Commission’s own guidelines which state, …”…the 
pa'ern of wards should as far as possible reflect the interests and iden55es of local communi5es” - these 
dra9 proposals do no such thing as this just does exist between Kilndown and Benenden or Goudhurst and 
Brenchley, as they completely separate communi(es.  This is opposed to the very strong links between 
Goudhurst and Kilndown as explained in detail in our Parish Council’s submission. 

ELECTORAL EQUALITY  

TWBC is split between Rural and Urban popula5ons and to try to “……deliver electoral equality, where each 
councillor represents roughly the same number of electors as others…” is grossly unfair on the Rural 
councillors, as their wards are less densely populated, as so become far to large to manage and represent 
properly, as these dra9 proposals clearly show. One size does not fit all and this is only one factor that LGBC 
has to take into considera(on. Also, the Rural councillors costs are far higher these larger wards. 

TRANSPORT LINKS 

Under Para 135 the dra9 report states there are good road transport links between the parts of each of the 
wards. Having looked at the links between the villages of Benenden, Sandhurst and Hawkhurst and find very 
liHle to substan(ate this statement. 

Further more the views from the local community have been expressed in individual comments and by the 
following -  
1. Residents pe((on from Christ Church, Kilndown 
2. Residents pe((on from St Mary’s Church, Goudhurst 
3. The Submission from Goudhurst Parish Council - GPC 
4. On line pe((on circulated by GPC 

As I am sure your are now aware, last week there was an Extraordinary Mee(ng of Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council (TWBC) to consider a Mo(on to review of TWBC's previous decision to go for thirds elec(ons. The 
Mo(on was overwhelming Resolved, to return to consulta(on for all-out elec(ons, without a single vote 
against it and this will be commencing next week. 

I am involved with many of Goudhurst and Kilndown ac(vi(es and serve on various commiHees across both 
Kilndown & Goudhurst, but if I to be asked to cover a super large ward I will simply not be able to do this and 
so will not be able to serve my community as well. Does this comply with Para 149? - “Help the council 
deliver effec5ve and convenient local government” obviously not!  -  This whole process has already wasted 
hours of my (me as well as TWBC and GPC. 

Page 27

Appendix C

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localism-act-2011-overview


CONCLUSION 

I would like to put forward a counter proposal which would keep the 641 residents of Kilndown together with 
Goudhurst and this is to include Kilndown in the Rural Tunbridge Wells ward. Based on projected numbers, 
that this would result in RTW elector numbers being increased from 6410 with the inclusion of 641 Kilndown 
electors, giving a total electorate of 7051. This would result in a + 15% variance.  

From the Dra9 Recommenda(ons that the LGBCE have rejected a + 18% variance at para 69, and a + 16% 
variance at para 105. There are also references in the Dra9 Recommenda(ons too much higher variances 
which have also been rejected.  

However at para 69 a +12% variance has been accepted and note that a  -14% variance has been accepted 
in rela(on to the Cranbrook, Sissinghurst and FriHenden Ward.  

Therefore a + 15% variance should be acceptable in circumstances in which the community links between 
Kilndown and Goudhurst are so overwhelming and to prevent the disenfranchising of our Kilndown 
residents. 

Cllr David Knight, Goudhurst Parish and TW Borough Council 

8/10/22 

Page 28

Appendix C



 
The Council’s Consultation 
 
I was disappointed that, after the October Full Council vote on further consultation on changing to 
all-out elections, the Council should have put out the same reasons for changing to all-out elections 
that were used for the consultation early in the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England (LGBCE) review.  At that time, having been directly involved in contributing to the LGBCE 
review, I fully understood that the decision to remain with elections by thirds would mean very 
significant changes to the present wards because of the LGBCE requirement that councils electing by 
thirds must have 3-member wards throughout the Borough.  Presently of the 20 wards in the 
Tunbridge Wells Borough, 10 are single or 2-member wards.  The requirement that councils electing 
by thirds must have 3-member wards throughout the Borough, however, was not fully appreciated 
by many Parish and Town Councils or many residents.     
 
I felt that the debate has moved on from that earlier consultation and was now about how 
appropriate the LGBCE draft warding arrangements were and whether a change to all-out elections 
would provide the necessary flexibility to determine a better warding pattern leading to Councillors 
being more representative of and accountable to their community/communities.  It was that 
concern being voiced by many rural parishes directly to me and through KALC that encouraged me 
to seek to have the matter reconsidered.  Ultimately the only way to achieve this re-consideration 
was through calling an Extraordinary Full Council meeting. 
 
At that Extraordinary Full Council meeting, we heard directly from speakers from Parish and Town 
Councils expressing concerns about the LGBCE warding proposals and especially how these did not 
recognise historic boundaries, how these split some communities and bundled other communities 
together simply to achieve necessary electoral numbers.  I was particularly struck by comments 
made on behalf of Southborough Town Council.  Southborough has a mayor and historic town 
boundaries and needs 4 Councillors to meet the electoral average.  That cannot be achieved with 3-
member wards.  Instead parts of the town are proposed to be placed in other 3-member wards.  All-
out elections would enable Southborough to be represented by 4 Councillors, perhaps in two 2-
member wards.   
 
Some of the rural wards were identified to be 14 miles across made up of several communities some 
unrelated to each other and with few connections.  Tunbridge Wells Borough Council needs 
representation from homogenised communities.  I would envisage difficulty in attracting local 
community representation from parishes bundled together; smaller communities too may become 
unrepresentative (because there are more electors in the larger communities).  We heard too from a 
former Independent Borough Councillor for Cranbrook whose ward had been merged into a 3-
member ward; the enlarged ward then returned a member on a Party-ticket.  We must try to have 
warding arrangements which encourage people to put themselves forward to represent their 
communities.   
 
Finally we have not fully explained to residents that increasingly Tunbridge Wells Borough Council is 
the outlier in opting to elect by thirds.  All-out elections are the way we elect the National 
Government, Metropolitan Mayors, County Councils, Police & Crime Commissioners, Parish Councils, 
all other Borough and District Councils in Kent (and most in the south-east) and all London Boroughs.  
Changing to all-out elections will save significant money - at least £200k (and increasing) over the 
election cycle which can be used to safeguard other council services in these inflationary times.  The 
results of all consultations on the Council’s finances show that the priority of residents is that the 
Council should seek to reduce its cost and safeguard services.   
 

Page 29

Appendix D



All-out Elections 
 
Since the Extraordinary Full Council meeting, the LGBCE has agreed that the review in TWBC will be 
paused and more flexible warding arrangements will be possible if TWBC opts to change to all-out 
elections.  [In my opinion this was not in doubt but some Councillors identified this as a risk at the 
Extraordinary Full Council meeting.]   
 
The main reasons I support all-out elections are: 
 
1. It is the norm and the way we elect the Government, Metropolitan Mayors, County Councils, 
Police & Crime Commissioners, most Borough Councils (all other Boroughs/Districts in Kent) and 
Parish & Town Councils. There is no reason for TWBC to be an outlier. 
 
2.  Large 3-member wards are only required to create electoral balance in boroughs/districts opting 
to elect by thirds.  With all-out elections, single and 2-member as well as 3-member wards are 
permitted.   
 
3.  More single and 2-member wards will make Councillors more representative of and more 
accountable to their community/communities.  More than that I think it would encourage residents 
to put themselves forward to represent their community/communities.  All-out elections will enable 
warding arrangements to be determined that will encourage that.  The risk in large 3-member wards 
is that this representation only comes from residents better known in the larger communities and 
the smaller communities lose their voice.  Arguably too it would help Independent candidates 
against candidates just standing on a Partly ticket.    
 
4.  All-out elections should lead to groups putting forward positive plans in manifestos and not 
electioneering against a particular development.  [Major development schemes by the Council will 
take a longer time to work up than can be achieved a 4-year term and so only ought to be planned 
with wide cross-party support.] 
 
5.  All-out elections will save significant costs (over £200k in the electoral cycle) which in difficult 
economic time will help preserve Council services.   
 
I hope the consultation undertaken will show residents support the change to all-out elections and 
Councillors in turn will support the change at the next Full Council meeting.   
 
Tom Dawlings 
 
 
 
 

Page 30

Appendix D



Consultation over proposed Tunbridge Wells Borough Council (TWBC) Ward boundary 
changes 

 
The UK Electoral Commission is in the process of reallocating the electoral wards according to 

the voting system chosen by local Borough Councils.  “So what?” may be the response of some 

but this is important and directly affects that way our villages are represented on TWBC in the 

future.  

TWBC, which includes Brenchley and Matfield, chose to retain the “By Thirds” voting system 

(meaning one third of councillors being elected each year). The retention of “By Thirds” at the 

same time as reducing the total number of Borough Councillors would result in our parish 

being merged into a vast four-parish ward, stretching from Goudhurst and Lamberhurst all 

the way to Matfield, thereby losing the great advantage of truly local representation.  

But this does not need to happen - it could still be changed. So we are campaigning to reverse 

this decision. 

Despite much resistance, at an Extraordinary Meeting of the Borough Council, Councillors 

and Lib Dem leader Ben Chapelard finally U-turned. By a massive 33 -10 vote, Councillors, 

across all the parties, agreed to a re-Consultation with the public on the voting system.  Thank 

you all those who took the trouble to write in with your objections to the vast non-community 

wards that were being proposed for our rural communities. Your letters worked; even the 

Boundary Commission noticed and is now expected to pause the finalising of the TW voting 

and warding to allow the public, us, to have our say.   

What is this “All Out” versus “Thirds” all about?  

“Thirds” mean that one third of councillors are elected each year, allowing electors to vote 

(and thereby comment on issues) each year. The problem with that seemingly good idea is 

that it is more costly (an extra £200,000 over the three year cycle, at a time when the Council 

may need to make huge cuts to services and raise parking charges) and, most importantly, as 

all Wards would be voting each year there would need to be three members per Ward which 

would, in many cases, have to be three times their present size because the Electoral 

Commission has decided to reduce the number of Councillors and the number of Wards to 

match.  

Thus in rural areas Wards would become much larger, multi parish, non-community based 

entities, with, in our case, five villages from four different parishes added together. The 

residents lose the community link with their Councillor and the Councillors themselves are 

likely to become elected along party political lines rather than being a local representative.  

Moving to voting All-Out every four years, which is what your PC recommend, could enable 

Wards to be kept much smaller according to geography and historic parishes, with Councillors 

known and accountable to their community (not just party affiliation).   

Page 31

Appendix E



Now that electors across the borough have fully understood the implications of the 

supposedly simple question of whether to vote by “Thirds” annually or “All-Out” every four 

years, Borough Councillors have agreed to a re-consultation with the public on which voting 

system to use. It starts now. To achieve this change we need as many as possible from the 

parish to respond (again) in the next few weeks to the new borough consultation which is a 

short questionnaire using the link or by email. If you agree with your parish council, then click 

on the link below and tick the box in the questionnaire to vote “All-Out”.  

https://talkingpointtunbridgewells.uk.engagementhq.com/a-consultation-on-our-electoral-

system 

 
Some have suggested that we may be wasting our time, as the Commission were unlikely to 
change the warding proposals so late in the process. We are advised however that the 
Commission will take note of the results of the questionnaire.  So you can make a difference 
– please respond to the Consultation if you possibly can and encourage your friends and 
neighbours to do likewise.  It only takes a moment with just a couple of questions to answer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32

Appendix E

https://url6.mailanyone.net/scanner?m=1oj08w-000COs-48&d=4%7Cmail%2F90%2F1665674400%2F1oj08w-000COs-48%7Cin6i%7C57e1b682%7C28124737%7C13544887%7C63482EC242E2AF7EC6D1D6FFCDF42FF5&s=ziv5pckosrKGElEl3mnFSnv-uoU&o=%2Fphta%3A%2Fttsinlktponiggbtuwidenr.selnukel.tegaqenhgmcm.cna-oo%2Fotsu-tinlaeooner-l-usrctsl-yoamet
https://url6.mailanyone.net/scanner?m=1oj08w-000COs-48&d=4%7Cmail%2F90%2F1665674400%2F1oj08w-000COs-48%7Cin6i%7C57e1b682%7C28124737%7C13544887%7C63482EC242E2AF7EC6D1D6FFCDF42FF5&s=ziv5pckosrKGElEl3mnFSnv-uoU&o=%2Fphta%3A%2Fttsinlktponiggbtuwidenr.selnukel.tegaqenhgmcm.cna-oo%2Fotsu-tinlaeooner-l-usrctsl-yoamet


 

Goudhurst Parish Council 
 

Chairman of the Council      Clerk to the Council  
Cllr Antony Harris      Claire Reed 
The Oast House      The Hop Bine 
Curtisden Green      Risebridge Farm 
Cranbrook       Goudhurst Cranbrook 
Kent   TN17 1LL      TN17 1HN 
Telephone: 01580 211329     Telephone: 01580 212552 
antony.harris@goudhurst-pc.gov.uk    clerk@goudhurst-pc.gov.uk
  
 

 
http://.goudhurst-pc.gov.uk 

 
 

GOUDHURST PARISH COUNCIL (GPC) SUBMISSIONS 

 IN RESPONSE TO THE TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL (TWBC) CONSULTATION 

AS TO THIRDS/ALL OUT ELECTIONS 

 

A. INTRODUCTION 

These are the submissions of GPC in response to TWBC’s consultation as to the issue of thirds 

versus all out elections.   

There are three principal and extremely important reasons why GPC strongly oppose elections by 

thirds.  These are: 

1. The democratic deficit which arises from thirds elections, 

2. The cost of thirds elections, 

3. Council continuity. 

It follows from this, and has been expressed elsewhere, that GPC strongly support all out 

elections.  We will comment on each of these points below. 

B. THE DEMOCRATIC DEFICIT 

Local government represents the level of government which is closest to people and is highly 

valued as such.  A survey by ComRes for the BBC cited by the Local Government Association in its 

briefing for the House of Lords debate on Local Democracy in January 2016 found that 80% of 

people support greater devolution to local areas and that they want decisions that affect their lives 

to be made by people who live and work among them.  

Page 33

Appendix F

http://.goudhurst-pc.gov.uk/


 

Local democracy should ensure that local policies reflect the needs and preferences of local 

communities and elected local representatives should be the staunchest guardians of local 

democracy.  The legislation relating to boundary reviews expressly recognises the need to respect 

the importance of local communities and need for community identity. 

TWBC represents a mixture of communities and it should ensure that all of those communities are 

properly and equally represented.  The most significant distinction which TWBC has to address is 

the distinction between the town and the parishes which each represent approximately 50% of the 

population.  What is starkly exposed by the August 2022 Draft Recommendations of the Local 

Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) for TWBC (the Draft Recommendations) 

is the adverse consequences for local democracy and local communities if the decision to go for 

thirds elections is maintained.  The inflexibility in ward size and the need for equal numbers of 

councillors to represent wards as a consequence of thirds elections deprives the parishes, in 

particular, of effective, fair and equal representation.  As GPC has said elsewhere, one of the worst 

examples of the democratic deficit which third elections produce is in relation to the proposed 

splitting of Goudhurst and Kilndown, which have existed together as a single administrative unit 

since Saxon times, and even prior to that, and which have deep and extensive links which cannot 

and should not be so easily severed if the principle of local government democracy is to be properly 

observed and maintained. 

Some communities may be pleased with the Draft Recommendations and some communities may 

be neutral about the Draft Recommendations, but that is not to the point.  Whether there are 

winners or losers in the boundary review, every representative should be concerned to ensure that 

there is fair and equal representation across the whole of TWBC and should be prepared to not 

only support, but fight for this, irrespective of party political advantage.  No representative who 

genuinely believes in the concept of community and the concept of electoral fairness should find 

it acceptable that some communities are being sacrificed to the advantage of others as an 

inevitable consequence of a decision to go for thirds elections.  

Under the Draft Recommendations many of the parishes find themselves lumped together in large 

and geographically unwieldy conglomerates which have no links and no identity.  No representative 

of these wards can hope to achieve any degree of success in properly representing such 

conglomerates and the electorates in these communities are effectively being disenfranchised.  

The problems of the democratic deficit may not be so obvious in the town, but TWBC should not 

be prepared to, in effect, create a two-tier system where those living in the town have the benefit 

Page 34

Appendix F



 

of local and community based representation whereas those living in the parishes are left in an 

electoral black hole.  There is an uncomfortably Orwellian aspect to such an outcome and it is not 

without good reason that other authorities have rejected thirds elections. 

Wards should relate to geography and parish based communities and councillors should be known 

to and properly accountable to their communities. 

There is also the issue of election fatigue.  Despite peoples’ commitment to local government this 

is not always reflected as well as it might be at the ballot box.  The idea that residents are going to 

welcome the opportunity to vote every year is fanciful and there must be a real concern that one 

of the consequences of thirds elections is that of election fatigue, leading to lower electoral 

participation rates than are currently achieved. 

By contrast the democratic benefits of all out elections are clear.  Quite simply it is a fairer system 

of election and leads to fairer representation.  The flexibility which all out elections offer means 

that ward sizes can be adapted to genuinely reflect communities and the system as is the case now, 

where wards are represented by a different number of councillors as is appropriate for their 

communities, can be maintained.  Parishes like Goudhurst and its hamlets of Kilndown and 

Curtisden Green can be kept together, as can other communities, and the principle of electoral 

equality and fairness can be fully respected. 

C. COST 

At a time when TWBC finances are under extreme pressure and important services are under 

threat it cannot, on any proper view, be justified for elected representatives to expend taxpayers’ 

money on unnecessary and undesirable elections at a cost of circa £100,000.00 per annum or circa 

£400,000.00 over a council term.  No elector faced with a choice of delivering important services 

to vulnerable people would choose not to spend such a significant sum of money in such a way 

and instead divert it to unnecessary and paradoxically undemocratic elections and no elected 

representative should be prepared to make such a choice.  Local government services are 

important and precious.  They should not be so lightly squandered. 

D. COUNCIL CONTINUITY  

Council terms are based on a 4-year cycle.  Political stability is important over such a period if 

meaningful and longer term plans as regards services are to be delivered.  The political instability 

which is inherent in thirds elections will deprive TWBC of the opportunity to promote and deliver 

services in the longer term and risks reducing TWBC to an authority which goes for “quick fix” 

Page 35

Appendix F



 

solutions to gain short term electoral popularity, rather than an authority which focuses on 

providing sustainable and longer term solutions to the challenges which it faces.  The damage that 

this could cause to local services and local stability is incalculable. 

Local government services are by their very nature deliverable on wider horizon.  They cannot 

properly be delivered on a narrow and time limited horizon and TWBC should not expose its 

electorate to compromising its services in such a way. 

E. CONCLUSION 

GPC believe for the reasons set out above that the arguments in favour of all out elections are 

overwhelming.  GPC also believes that those who do not support this are failing their electorate.  

GPC understand if TWBC decide, on further reflection, and having further consulted the 

electorate, that all out elections should be adopted, that the LGBCE have indicated that they are 

minded to reconsider their Draft Recommendations.  This gives us all an opportunity to rescue the 

communities that would be sacrificed by the Draft Recommendations and ensure that electoral 

fairness and equality is restored to TWBC for the good of the whole local electorate. 

22 November 2022 

 

Page 36

Appendix F



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

14 November 2022 
 
 

 

Re: Electoral System Consultation  
 

Capel Parish Council support the move to all out elections. Our previous stance was to support election 

by thirds as we believed this provided for more continuity in representation and allowed most residents 

a say in how the council was run more frequently. However, given this system requires three member 

wards, and having looked with alarm at the initial LGBC recommendations which would see Capel 

linked with Pembury in a very large ward, (which would mean that Capel's community may not be 

effectively represented and its distinct heritage and perspective thus ignored), we have changed our 

view. We believe rural community interests would be lost in very large rural wards which promote 

electoral equality over effective community representation. As the legislation requires three member 

wards if elections are to be by thirds, we would support all out elections as the only way to retain an 

effective voice for our small community whose interests are not always the same as the larger 

communities that the LGBC would link it with for electoral purposes. 

 
 
      Capel Parish Council  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
clerk@capelpc.co.uk 
www.capelpc.co.uk 

Clerk 
Capel Parish Council Office 
Capel Village Hall 
Five Oak Green 
Kent TN12 6RD 
 
Tel: (01892) 837524 

CAPEL PARISH COUNCIL 
 

Page 37

Appendix G



LAMBERHURST PARISH COUNCIL 
 

CHAIRMAN: Graham White 

25,Hopgarden Close, Brewers Street, Lamberhurst Kent TN3 8DY 

Tel: 01892 890713 

Email: parishchairlamberhurst@gmail.com 

 

CLERK: Mrs Tracie Dodd 

The Tyled House, School Hill, Lamberhurst, Kent TN3 8DQ 

Tel: 01892 891440 

Email: clerk@lamberhurstvillage.org 

 

Reply correspondence should be sent via the Clerk 

 
Lamberhurst Parish Council has very serious concerns regarding the proposals 
insofar as they dilute the representation that our Parish will have at Borough Council 
level, take no account of community boundaries, do not recognise the diversity of 
issues arising in rural areas and will lead to less effective government and 
understanding of rural issues in what will become a largely a more “urban-district” 
focused Borough Council. 
 
In particular, the grouping together of Lamberhurst with parts of Goudhurst, 
Horsmonden and Brenchley and Matfield parishes creates a large unwieldy ward with 
no real community links that will make it difficult for Borough Councillors to provide 
effective liaison between the Parish Councils and the Borough Council. 
Notwithstanding this the travel commitments and broader range of issues to be dealt 
with may make it difficult to attract capable local candidates with the necessary 
knowledge of community issues and opportunities to stand as Borough Councillors, 
this in turn will lead to less effective government. 
 
Lamberhurst Parish Council has a Neighbourhood Development Plan that was 
“made” or adopted by TWBC last Autumn, it outlines a vibrant plan for the Parish 
over the next 15 years close working with TWBC, facilitated by  Borough Councillors 
will be essential in its successful implementation in the years ahead. Goudhurst is at 
a similar stage as us and Horsmonden and Brenchley and Matfield are at the 
advance stages of their Neighbourhood Development Plans. These plans differ 
insofar that they are community specific and have been compiled through extensive 
local research and consultation led by hard working voluntary residents of their 
respective Parishes.  
 
The workload created as we enter the implementation phases of our Neighbourhood 
Plan means that we will be looking for greater support from our Borough Councillors 
as I am sure will be the case with the other parishes that your proposal groups us 
with. This is an argument for more Borough Councillor support rather than less if 
effective government is to be maintained rather than diminished. 
 
It is understood that the proposed changes are driven by a stipulation from TWBC 
that elections are “by thirds” that means that wards have to be configured by 
multiples of three councillor wards which clearly has led to some peculiar ward 
configurations with our neighbouring Parish of Goudhurst split in two. This "desk 

Page 38

Appendix H

mailto:parishchairlamberhurst@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@lamberhurstvillage.co.uk


driven” exercise has resulted in a proposal that is at best sub-optimal and given that 
the consensus amongst local people is that the two current wards in the proposed 
Rural Tunbridge Wells ward plus Kilndown largely works, could this status quo not be 
maintained with two 2 Borough Councillor wards?  Failing that two 3 Borough 
Councillor wards so that the integrity of the “by thirds” methodology is maintained 
should be considered. 
 
Finally the term "Rural Tunbridge Wells" is widely disliked as the communities 
proposed to be contained within it have strong individual sense of belonging to their 
diverse and separate parishes and any naming of future wards must reflect the 
identities of the parishes they represent. 
 
In summary, we believe the proposals as presented needs a serious rethink as they 
take no account of community considerations, will lead to less effective government 
with TWBC becoming more focused on urban matters with less attention to the more 
diverse rural issues in the Borough. 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39

Appendix H



   
 

 
CRANBROOK & SISSINGHURST 

PARISH COUNCIL 
 

Mrs. L Ham,           THE OLD FIRE STATION, 

Clerk 

          STONE STREET, 
Telephone 01580 713112 

Email: clerk@cranbrookandsissinghurstpc.co.uk                                                                      CRANBROOK, 

www.cranbrookandsissinghurstpc.co.uk                                                                                  
Office Open: 10 - 12: Mon - Fri.                                                                                                KENT, TN17 3HF. 

 

 

For the attention of: 

The General Purposes Committee 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Town Hall  

Mount Pleasant Road 

Royal Tunbridge Wells 

Kent TN1 1RS 

21st November 2022 

 

All Out Elections 

Dear Committee Members, 

 
Cranbrook and Sissinghurst Parish Councillors have mandated me to write to you to express the view of the Council 

that there should be one election for all Borough Councillors every 4 years, not the ‘by thirds’ as is currently the case. 

 

1. Our discussions led us to agree that future 3 member wards would lead to a democratic deficit for rural areas, 

as large wards mean small communities can be out-voted by neighbouring larger communities which they will 

be ‘lumped in with’ meaning the demise of local individuals who do a lot for their small local community, but 

are not known across the wider region. 

2. Having a single election should lead to a higher calibre of councillor as there is more to gain. 

3. Financially there are substantial savings to be made by having a single election every 4 years. This is so 

important in the current straightened financial circumstances. 

4. TWBC is the only council in Kent that does NOT have a single election, and it is the norm for our national 

elections. The Public are confused and bored by the number of elections. 

 

 
 

Kim Fletcher – Chairman  

Cranbrook and Sissinghurst Parish Council 

Page 40

Appendix I

mailto:clerk@cranbrookandsissinghurstpc.co.uk
http://www.cranbrookandsissinghurstpc.co.uk/


FRITTENDEN PARISH COUNCIL 
 

Park Cottage 

Frittenden 

Cranbrook 

Kent TN17 2AU 

22 November 2022 

Jane Clarke 

Head of Policy and Governance 

Town Hall 

Mount Pleasant Road 

Royal Tunbridge Wells 

Kent TN1 1RS 

Dear Ms Clarke, 

Consultation on the Electoral System in Tunbridge Wells Borough 

At the last meeting of Frittenden Parish Council (15 November) it was 

agreed that we make the following submission to Tunbridge Wells BC to 

explain the principal reasons why we support a move to all-out elections 

within the borough. 

Frittenden Parish Council wants Tunbridge Wells Borough Council to 

change to all out-elections in order to ensure that we can remain as part 

of a single-member ward.   

We feel that multi-member wards are inappropriate for rural 

representation as they require the grouping of parishes, often spread over 

a considerable area, in order to create a ward with the requisite number 

of electors.   

We believe that this will: 

• Stifle the voice of small communities.   

In the case of Frittenden we are part of a ward comprising two 

neighbouring villages.  Under the proposed three-member ward 

Frittenden would form about one tenth of the electorate.  Its 

representatives would be chosen by the voters in the nearby town.  As 

a small rural community, without shops or public transport, our interests 

are quite different from those of our much larger neighbour, Cranbrook.   

Page 41

Appendix J



• Destroy the close connection between councillors and their electors 

which exists in single-member wards.   

People whose main allegiance is to their own local community, rather 

than a political party, are less likely to stand for election as councillors.   

• Increase costs and reduce efficiency 

Three-member wards increase the cost of holding elections as 

elections are needed three times as often.  Council Tax payers will pay 

more yet receive a lower quality of representation.  This is indefensible 

when TWBC are struggling to balance their budget.   

Servicing the needs of an electorate spread over a large geographical 

area will incur greater costs and fuel use, and require more time if 

councillors are to do their job effectively. 

I should be grateful if you could pass on our Council’s views to the relevant 

members and officers of Tunbridge Wells BC. 

Yours sincerely, 

Anthony Staples 

Chairman 

Frittenden Parish Council 

email: anthonystaples@btinternet.com 

Page 42

Appendix J



HAWKHURST PARISH COUNCIL 
Miss Anita Maxwell, Acting Clerk     The Office at The Moor, 

Office Hours:  Mon 9:30am – 11am Hawkhurst Library  Hawkhurst  

   Tues - Fri    10:00am -12:00 noon  Kent, TN18 4NT 

Email: parish.clerk@hawkhurst-pc.gov.uk                         Telephone: 01580 752058                     

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

By email 
22nd November 2022 

TWBC Consultations 
 
Good afternoon, 
 

Hawkhurst Parish Council (HPC) is grateful for the opportunity to respond to the consultation on TWBC’s 
Electoral System. HPC supports a change to all-out elections every four years.  
  
The current LGBCE Review has brought to the fore the benefits of adopting all-out elections as this would allow 
the Boundary Commission greater flexibility when determining the warding pattern for the borough. Without 
the constraints of three-member wards, there is far more scope to design a pattern of wards which enables 
effective representation across the whole of the borough. Whilst this is particularly relevant for the rural wards 
in the eastern area of the borough where the proposed wards are geographically very big, other areas would 
also benefit as it would limit the necessity to split communities. 
  
An advantage of all-out elections is that it gives scope for different arrangements in different parts of the 
borough. Where appropriate, single-member wards would strengthen the links between borough councillors 
and their communities, as well as increasing accountability. Elsewhere, communities will be better served by two 
or three-member wards. 
  
However, in HPC’s opinion the advantages of moving to all-out elections go well beyond the current issue of 
warding arrangements. The existing position of election by thirds can be complicated, and it is not necessarily 
clear to residents why only some councillors are up for election. Annual elections reduce the significance of the 
elections and can lead to voter fatigue. A move to elections every four years, will significantly reduce costs for 
the borough council. This is more important than ever in the current economic situation and must be one of the 
few areas where TWBC can reduce expenditure without it having a negative impact on its ability to deliver 
services. 
  
A decision to move to all-out elections would allow longer-term planning and provide more opportunity for the 
Borough Council to implement policies and see these through to fruition. The present system, with elections 
three years out of four, means that Borough Councillors potentially only have nine months in which to focus on 
delivery, with the other three given over to campaigning. Surely, our Borough Councillors would be far more 
effective if they were able to focus on their role for 45 months before focusing on an election. 
  
Consequently, Hawkhurst Parish Council strongly favours a move to all-out elections. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Clare Escombe 
Chairman, Hawkhurst Parish Council 
 

Page 43

Appendix K

mailto:parish.clerk@hawkhurst-pc.gov.uk


 

 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Attn: Jane Clarke 

 

 

•  Research from the electoral commission suggests that all out elections 
are fairer to the electorate and that this electoral system is clearer and 
easier to understand.  

 

 

 

 

Page 44

Appendix L



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45

Appendix L



 

  HORSMONDEN PARISH COUNCIL 

The Parish Office, Horsmonden Village Hall, Back Lane, Horsmonden, Kent, TN12 8LH 
Clerk:  Mrs L Noakes 
Tel: 01892 724989 

email: clerk@horsmonden-pc.gov.uk 
www.horsmonden-pc.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Dear Councillors 
 
Re: TWBC Electoral System Consultation 
 
Horsmonden Parish Councillors have asked me to write and express their views on the Electoral Review 
Consultation by letter, as well as completing the consultation on the TWBC webpage. 
 
Parish Councillors at Horsmonden discussed this matter at their meeting on Tuesday 18th October and the 
majority of Parish councillors voted in favour of adopting an ‘all-out’ system for Election in the Borough. 
 
The Parish Council believes that voting ‘by thirds will create 13 identically sized annually voting, three 
councillor wards resulting in: 
 

a) Cutting apart communities (e.g. Kilndown will be split from Goudhurst; Southborough will be split in 
two)  
 

b) Many local communities will be added to several others (e.g. Four different parishes adding together, 
up to some 14 miles across Goudhurst will be added to Lamberhurst, Horsmonden, Brenchley and 
Matfield)  
 

c) One of the stated objectives of the Boundary review is to achieve equity and democracy through respect 
of communities, however, the splitting of towns and parishes or merging of disparate communities 
removes “communities” as a criterion 
 

d) Wards will no longer have representatives elected with passion for their local community 
 

e) Size of the wards will make electioneering very difficult thus putting off potential candidates; 
 

f) The review makes it clear that there is a wish to attract a more diverse councillor base “not just the 
retired, self-employed etc.”  Representation at both parish and borough level is hard work, for little or 
no remuneration, requiring great commitment. In large diverse wards this difficulty is magnified greatly; 

 
g) The expense of holding election three years out of four; 

 

Page 46

Appendix M

http://www.horsmonden-pc.gov.uk/


h) We suggest that a near perpetual electioneering process running for much of the year – new councillor 
induction May-June, Candidate selections Sept-Nov, Campaigns March-April will make it very difficult 
for the borough to achieve any stability or long-term planning and implementation; 

 
The Horsmonden Parish Councillors would prefer to see “all-out” Elections which they believe will resolve all 
the above issues and result in: 
 

a) Small single member wards based upon on Parish and or community Boundaries; 
 

b) Members being able to be focused upon single communities’ issues and not being stretched across 
communities that may have conflicting issues; 

 
c) Attract suitable candidates who are community focussed and not necessarily party political, similar to 

Parish Councils who are not party political; 
 

d) Make electioneering less time consuming, thus attracting more diverse candidates; 
  

e) Reduction in election costs and officer time; 
 

f) Result in democracy from the grass roots and not top down. 
 
 

Horsmonden Parish Council believes this will result in Effective Local Government – the Boundary 
Commissions’ third principle. 

 
Yours faithfully  
 
 

 
 
Mrs L Noakes (Clerk to Horsmonden Parish Council)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47

Appendix M



BIDBOROUGH PARISH COUNCIL 
 

Clerk                                                                                        Office 

Neil Harris                                                                                2 Pembury Gardens 

                                                                                                Maidstone   

                                                                                                                             Kent 

                                                                                                 ME16 8AR 

 

 

 

 

Jane Clarke 

Head of Policy and Governance 

Town Hall,  
Monson Way,  
Royal Tunbridge Wells,  
TN1 1RS 
 
Dear Ms Clarke 
 
Electoral System Consultation 
 
Many thanks for the opportunity for the Council to comment on this matter.  The view of the Parish 
Council is that your electoral system should move to all out elections every 4 years. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Neil Harris 
Clerk 
Bidborough Parish Council 
 

Page 48

Appendix N



S O U T H B O R O U G H  T O W N  C O U N C I L 

 
 

Tel: 01892 529176 

 

 Council Offices 
Southborough Civic Centre, 

137, London Road, 
Southborough, 
Kent TN4 0NA 

 
 

                                                                                                               

 

 
 
 
 
 
         1st December 2022 
 
 
Dear Sir, 
 

All Out Elections, Tunbridge Wells Borough.  
 
As a council we have already responded to the Boundary Commission consultation. This letter 
explains in more detail why we believe the flexibility of all-out elections, rather than by-thirds 
as is currently the case, are crucial to the survival of Southborough and High Brooms as 
coherent and effective wards that reflect their community identities 
 
 
1. Council Members agreed at their meeting held on 27 October 2022 that this Council 

would only support all-out elections. By not doing so would unfairly impact our 
communities that have historically been all part of the same area. To deal with the matter 
in-thirds would mean the division of our community, meaning part of the area would be 
placed with a Tunbridge Wells area that has no affiliation to this community and their 
Town Council that represents them. STC believe this would undermine the distinctive 
community identity of our town and would reduce the effectiveness of local 
representation. 

 
2. Further to this, we now have some clarity from the Boundary Commission about how a 

move to all out elections could resolve some of the inherent problems with the current 
by-thirds proposals  

 
“If the Council resolves to move to all-out elections we would look to consider how the 
electoral review could be completed reflecting the flexibility that an ‘all out’ electoral cycle 
provides whereby a combination of one, two and/or three-members can be created.”   
 

Boundary Commission, November 2022 
 
 3.  Having a single election once every four years should lead to a higher voter turn our – 
better engagement with the democratic process and reduce voter fatigue. 
 
 

Page 49

Appendix O



S O U T H B O R O U G H  T O W N  C O U N C I L 

 
 

Tel: 01892 529176 

 

 Council Offices 
Southborough Civic Centre, 

137, London Road, 
Southborough, 
Kent TN4 0NA 

 
 

                                                                                                               

 

4. The cost saving of adopting all-out elections, at approximately £200k over four years 
when local government finances are at breaking point would seem a common sense 
solution if TWBC are serious about saving ratepayers money. As a Town Council we have 
been asked to consider taking on additional charges for a local car park. Surely this must 
be an important financial consideration? 

 
5. Town and Parish councils should not have to have their ward areas sliced up and or 

amalgamated with unrelated areas of Tunbridge Wells because some political parties 
don’t have enough party members to field candidates for all-out elections. 
 

Yours faithfully, 
 
 

 
Tracy Kelly 
Town Clerk 
 
 

Page 50

Appendix O



Appendix P 

 
 
Dear Jane, 
 
I'm writing in my capacity as the Chair of the Tunbridge Wells Branch of the Labour Party. 
 
I'll keep it short - we have decided as a branch that we 'reject the move to all-out elections and 
support the retention of electing by thirds'. 
 
I hope that you can feed this into the mix of responses that you are taking into account. 
 
Philip Wheeler 
Chair of the Tunbridge Wells Branch of the Labour Party 
 
 
My apologies if this is finding you past the point that it is useful.  
 
Best, 
 
Philip Wheeler, Tunbridge Wells Labour Party Branch Chair. 
 

Page 51

Appendix P



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Common Seal of the Council 

 

Common Seal of the Council 

For Full Council on 14 December 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To authorise the Common Seal of the Council to be affixed to any contract, minute, notice or 

other document arising out of the minutes, or pursuant to any delegation, authority or power 

conferred by the Council. 

Page 52

Agenda Item 4


	Agenda
	1 Apologies for absence
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Whole Council Elections
	Appendix A - Electoral System Consultation Results
	Appendix B - Savings
	Appendix C - Cllr David Knight Letter
	Appendix D - Cllr Tom Dawlings Letter
	Appendix E - Brenchley and Matfield Parish Council Response
	Appendix F - Goudhurst Parish Council Response
	Appendix G - Capel Parish Council Response
	Appendix H - Lamberhurst Parish Council Response
	Appendix I - Cranbrook and Sissinghurst Council Response
	Appendix J - Frittenden Parish Council Response
	Appendix K - Hawkhurst Parish Council Response
	Appendix L - Paddock Wood Town Council Response
	Appendix M - Horsmonden Parish Council Response
	Appendix N - Bidborough Parish Council Response
	Appendix O -STC response to TWBC BC
	Appendix P - TW Branch Chair Labour

	4 Common Seal of the Council

